UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA
FOURTH DIVISION

Kenneth E. Andersen and Dell D.

Holm, On behalf of themselves and
all others similarly situated, Case No. 08-CV-5687
and

William K. Bulmer, II, On behalf of

himself and all others similarly FIRST AMENDED
situated, CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT
Plaintiffs
Vs. JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

The County of Becker, Minnesota,
Tim Gordon, in his capacity as Sheriff
of Becker County, and Joseph H.
McArthur, in his capacity as Captain
in the Becker County Sheriff’s
Department,

N’ N N N N N’ N N N N’ N N N N N N N N N

Defendants.

Plaintiffs Kenneth E. Andersen, Dell D. Holm and William K. Bulmer, II bring
this class action on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated, and state as
follows:

I INTRODUCTION

1. This class action for damages and injunctive relief is brought pursuant to
42 U.S.C. § 1983 for violations of the plaintiffs’ rights, and those of the classes the
plaintiffs represent (collectively, “Plaintiffs™), under the First, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth and

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution; under Article I, Sections 6, 7
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and 10 of the Minnesota Constitution; pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2510, et seq., for
violations of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (Title III); for
violations of Minnesota Statutes §§ 481.10 and 626A; and for violations of Plaintiffs’
rights under both federal and Minnesota common law.

2. Plaintiffs seek injunction of, and redress for, defendants” unlawful and
unconstitutional policy, custom and/or practice of recording privileged and confidential
telephone calls between attorneys and/or the attorneys’ agents — including investigative
agents — and their clients who have been and/or are detained and/or incarcerated in the
Becker County Detention Facility (“Jail”). Plaintiffs also seek injunction of, and redress
for, defendants’ unlawful and unconstitutional policy, custom and/or practice of
affirmatively informing attorneys/attorneys’ agents and detainees/inmates that

attorney/client telephone calls are not recorded via the Jail’s Inmate Handbook and via

signs posted at the facility, when all such calls are recorded unless the attorney’s
telephone number is placed on the Jail’s “Do Not Record” list. Finally, Plaintiffs seek
injunction of, and redress for, defendants’ failure to inform attorneys/attorneys’ agents
and detainees/inmates of either the Jail’s internal procedure by which attorneys’ landline
telephone numbers may be placed on the “Do Not Record” list in order to arrange for
privileged and confidential attorney/client telephone calls, or of the fact that it refuses to
place the cellular phone numbers of attorneys or any phone numbers of attorneys’ agents

on the “Do Not Record” list.
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II. PARTIES

3. Plaintiff Kenneth E. Andersen (“Andersen”) is an inmate currently
incarcerated in the Minnesota Correctional Facility located in Rush City, Minnesota.
Andersen was a detainee/inmate at the Becker County Detention Facility from June 2007
to June 2008.

4. Plaintiff Dell. D. Holm (“Holm”) is an inmate currently incarcerated in the
Becker County Detention Facility located in Detroit Lakes, Minnesota. Holm has been in
custody in the Jail since May 3, 2008.

5. Plaintiff William K. Bulmer, II (“Bulmer”) is an individual residing in
St. Louis Park, Minnesota. Bulmer is an attorney currently licensed to practice in, and in
good standing with, the State of Minnesota. Bulmer practices in the area of criminal
defense and represented clients, including Andersen, who were detained/incarcerated in
the Becker County Detention Facility from June 2007 to January 2008. During Andersen’s
incarceration at the Becker County Detention Facility, Bulmer contacted Andersen via
telephone to discuss privileged and confidential aspects of his/her case on a number of
occasions.

6. Defendant Becker County is, and was at all relevant times herein, a political
entity charged with the control and supervision of all personnel of the Becker County

Sheriff’s Department and the Becker County Detention Facility.
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7. Defendant Tim Gordon (“Gordon™) 1s, and was at all relevant times herein,
the duly appointed and acting sheriff of Becker County. As such, Gordon is, and was, a
duly appointed agent of Becker County and was authorized to enforce the law, and was
acting under the color of law at all times material to the allegations set forth in this
Amended Complaint. All causes of action brought against Gordon are brought in his
official capacity as the sheriff of Becker County.

8. Defendant Joseph H. McArthur (“McArthur”) is, and was at all relevant
times herein, a duly appointed and acting law enforcement officer in the Becker County
Sheriff’s Department. As such, McArthur is, and was, a duly appointed agent of Becker
County and was authorized to enforce the law, and was acting under the color of law at all
times material to the allegations set forth in this Amended Complaint. All causes of action
brought against McArthur are brought in his official capacity as an officer of the Becker
County Sheriff’s Department.

III. JURISDICTION

0. This Court has original jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 to hear the
claims arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and 18 U.S.C. § 2510, et seq.

10.  Because this Court has original jurisdiction over several of the claims and
the claims arising under state law are so related to the federal claims as to form part of
the same case or controversy, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction over those state
law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

11.  Venue in the District of Minnesota is proper because defendant Becker
County is located in this District, the individually named defendants reside in and are
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employed in this District, and the unconstitutional and unlawful activities alleged herein
occurred in this District.
IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. Kenneth Andersen’s Interaction with the Becker County Detention
Facility

12. On June 11, 2007, Andersen was arrested and detained in the Becker
County Detention Facility. Upon arriving at the Jail, Andersen was provided with an
“Inmate Handbook™ for the facility. A copy of the Inmate Handbook provided to
Andersen 1s attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

13.  The Inmate Handbook sets forth the Jail’s policy of monitoring and/or
recording “all non-attorney/client privileged phone calls.” Specifically, Section D under
the heading “Jail Programs™ 1s entitled “Telephones,” and subsection D(3) states “Any

non-attorney/client privileged phone calls made from Becker County Detention Facility

will be monitored and/or recorded.” See Exhibit 1, p. 9 (emphasis added).

14.  The Inmate Handbook does not provide the detainee/inmate with any
information regarding how the Jail distinguishes between standard telephone calls —
which are subject to monitoring and/or recording — and attorney/client privileged and
confidential calls which are not to be monitored and/or recorded.

15.  Nor does the Inmate Handbook set forth — or even mention — the process by
which an attorney and/or detainee/inmate is able to request and arrange for a private,

privileged attorney/client telephone call.
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16.  Neither Andersen nor his attorneys, including Bulmer, were informed that a
process existed whereby an attorney and/or detainee/inmate could request a privileged
and confidential attorney/client telephone call.

17.  In addition, after being admitted to the Jail, Andersen observed signs posted
near the telephones reiterating the Jail’s telephone policy which was set forth in the
Inmate Handbook: “All phone calls and messages to and from the Becker County
Detention Facility are monitored and/or recorded. This includes the visiting booths.

Exceptions are phone calls made to an attorney.” See Exhibit 2 attached hereto

(emphasis added).

18.  Shortly after being brought to the Jail, Andersen retained attorney Rory
Durkin (“Durkin”) to represent him. Durkin’s law office 1s located in Anoka, Minnesota
— approximately 200 miles from Detroit Lakes, Minnesota where Andersen was in
custody in the Becker County Detention Facility.

19.  Durkin began to investigate Andersen’s case and hired investigator Glen
Fladmark (“Fladmark™) to assist with the investigation. Throughout the summer and
early fall of 2007, both Durkin and Fladmark contacted Andersen at the Becker County
Detention Facility by telephone regularly to discuss key aspects of the case — including
potential witnesses and exculpatory evidence — and to prepare Andersen’s defense.

20.  During this time, no one informed Durkin, Fladmark or Andersen that their
privileged attorney/client telephone calls were being monitored and/or recorded. Nor did

anyone inform them that the Becker County Detention Facility had an internal policy
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whereby a request to the Jail was required to have a telephone number placed on the “Do
Not Record” list in order to ensure the confidentiality of attorney/client telephone calls.

21.  In the fall of 2007, Durkin, Bulmer and Andersen began to suspect that
their telephone calls and the telephone calls between Fladmark and Andersen were being
listened to by members of Becker County law enforcement.

22. When Durkin and Andersen discussed their suspicions, Andersen informed
Durkin that he learned that it was a “running joke” among the Becker County inmates
that Becker County law enforcement listened to the inmates’ attorney/client telephone
calls.

23.  Based on the Inmate Handbook and the signs posted by the telephones in
the Becker County Detention Facility, Andersen and Durkin believed that their
attorney/client telephone calls had been confidential.

24.  After hearing this startling and disturbing “joke,” Andersen and Durkin
investigated the 1ssue and discovered an even more alarming reality — the Becker County
Detention Facility had in fact been monitoring and/or recording their attorney client
telephone calls and the privileged calls between Andersen and Fladmark.

25.  Only at this time, after Durkin, Bulmer, Fladmark and Andersen had been
communicating via telephone for over four months, did they learn of the Jail’s internal
policy regarding attorney/client telephone calls.

26.  The Jail’s policy is to monitor and/or record all detainee/inmate telephone

calls unless a detainee/inmate or attorney specifically requests that certain telephone
numbers be placed on the “Do Not Record” list. This was the first time that Durkin,
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Bulmer, Fladmark or Andersen had heard of the “Do Not Record” list. This policy is not
set forth anywhere in the Inmate Handbook nor is it displayed anywhere in the Jail.
Instead, it is an “unwritten” policy followed by the Becker County Detention Facility
personnel — but not disclosed to detainees/inmates or attorneys.

27.  Until mid-2007, to have a telephone number placed on the “Do Not
Record” list, a detainee/inmate or attorney had to request that a specific number be
added to the list. In mid-2007, the process changed slightly due to some software
upgrades by the private company managing the Becker County Detention Facility
telephone systems — Reliance Telephone Systems, Inc. (“Reliance™).

28.  Under the current procedures, a detainee/inmate or attorney generally must
call either Reliance or the Jail to request that specific telephone numbers be placed in the
“Do Not Record” list. Once a request is made, Reliance personnel investigate whether
the telephone number is an attorney number. If the Reliance personnel are satisfied that
the number 1s a proper attorney telephone number, it is placed on the “Do Not Record”
list. Reliance then places the number in a “free status” in its computer system and the
telephone number is blocked from being monitored or recorded. Becker County
Detention Facility personnel make the final determination regarding whether a telephone
number 1s placed on and/or remains on the “Do Not Record” list.

29.  After learning of the “Do Not Record” list policy and procedures, a
telephone call was made to the Jail to request that the office and cellular telephone
numbers of Durkin, Bulmer, Fladmark and several other attorneys in Durkin’s office be
placed on the “Do Not Record™ list at the beginning of December 2007.
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30.  The Jail initially complied with the request and placed all of the telephone
numbers — even the cellular telephone numbers — on the “Do Not Record” list on
December 3, 2007.

31.  Approximately three months later, however, Durkin and Bulmer learned
that many of the telephone numbers were no longer on the “Do Not Record” list — and
had not been on the list since December 5, 2007.

32.  Unbeknownst to Durkin, Bulmer, Fladmark or Andersen — because the Jail
had failed to inform them of this anomaly — the Jail’s internal policy prevents cellular
telephone numbers from being placed on the “Do Not Record” list, even when the
cellular number is that of a detainee’s/inmate’s attorney. Similarly, the telephone
numbers of agents of an attorney — such as an investigator hired by an attorney — are not
placed on the “Do Not Record” list. Accordingly, on December 5, 2007, the cellular
telephone numbers of Durkin, Bulmer and their attorney colleagues were removed from
the “Do Not Record” list.'

33.  Although Durkin’s, Bulmer’s and their attorney colleagues’ cellular
telephone numbers had been removed from the “Do Not Record” list, Becker County
Detention Facility personnel failed to inform Durkin, Bulmer or Andersen of this until

approximately three months later. During that entire period, Durkin, Bulmer and their

' Fladmark’s telephone number was not removed from the “Do Not Record” list because
the Becker County Attorney had informed Becker County Detention Facility personnel
that Fladmark’s telephone number could be placed on the “Do Not Record” list. This
was an exception to Becker County Detention Facility’s policy. April 14, 2008 Omnibus
Hearing Transcript, p. 133, Ins. 17-25. Relevant portions of the Omnibus Hearing
Transcript are attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
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colleagues contacted Andersen regularly from their cellular telephones and conversed
with him at length and in detail regarding his case, the upcoming Omnibus hearing and
his overall defense strategy.

34,  All of these cellular telephone attorney/client telephone calls were
monitored and/or recorded by the Becker County Detention Facility.

35.  Durkin raised the violations of attorney/client privilege at an April 14, 2008
Omnibus hearing (“Omnibus hearing”) in Andersen’s case. At the Omnibus hearing, the
facts concerning the Jail’s unconstitutional and unlawful policy regarding the monitoring
and/or recording of attorney/client telephone calls set forth above came to light.

36.  During the Omnibus hearing, Durkin stated that is seemed that Becker
County law enforcement was always “one step ahead of us” in the investigation
regarding Andersen’s case. Exhibit 3, p. 110, Ins. 16-25. “We talk on the phone and we
talk about witnesses that we’re going to go see. The State will have interviewed that
witness like an hour beforehand.” 7d.

37.  Durkin stated that be became so concerned with the possibility that Becker
County law enforcement were listening to privileged attorney/client telephone calls that
he arranged a “test.” This test consisted of Fladmark calling Andersen and informing
him that the next time Durkin visited Andersen, Durkin would “sneak him some drugs.”
Id. at p. 111, Ins. 9-16. Durkin informed the Court of the results of the “test” after
Fladmark had made the call: “And I tell you, Your Honor, the very next day deputies
started coming up to Mr. Andersen and asking him, hey, when is [the] other lawyer,
Rory Durkin, coming up to you?” Id. at p. 111, Ins. 16-20. Durkin went on to admit that
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he couldn’t prove that the telephone calls were monitored and/or recorded and actually
used against Andersen, but concluded that the results of the “test” were “very
suspicious.” /d.

38. Later during the Omnibus hearing, Durkin’s concerns regarding the
monitoring and/or recording of his and Andersen’s attorney/client privileged telephone
calls were confirmed by Becker County law enforcement officer, Joe McArthur.
McArthur stated that he was in charge of the Jail’s telephone system and admitted that
the Inmate Handbook does not disclose that attorney/client telephone calls are monitored
and/or recorded. /d. at pp. 118, 134.

39.  McArthur further admitted that all Becker County Detention Facility

inmate calls are automatically recorded unless the telephone numbers of the calls are on

the “Do Not Record” list. /d. at p. 122 (emphasis added).

40.  McArthur also admitted that neither Andersen nor any of Andersen’s
attorneys were ever informed by Becker County law enforcement personnel that
attorney/client calls between Andersen and his attorneys were being monitored and
recorded. /d. at p. 134.

41.  McArthur further admitted that he was the individual who made the
decision to remove Durkin’s and his attorney colleagues’ cellular telephone numbers
from the “Do Not Record” list on December 5, 2007 — and that this decision was based

on the “policy of the jail.” Id. at pp. 134-36.
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42.  McArthur admitted that due to this decision, attorney/client telephone calls
between Andersen and his attorneys’ cellular telephones had been recorded by the
Becker County Detention Facility since December 5, 2007. Id. at p. 136-37.

43. It was also disclosed during the Omnibus hearing that Special Agent Dan
Baumann (“Baumann”) of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension — who was a lead
investigator for the State in the prosecution of Andersen — was provided with audio
copies of Andersen’s telephone calls by McArthur and the Becker County Detention
Facility. Exhibit 3, p. 139-40.

44.  Baumann admitted that he listened to the recordings of Andersen’s
telephone calls, and at times, heard at the very least, the initial portions of telephone calls
between Andersen and his attorneys. /d. at p. 140. Baumann further admitted that he
downloaded copies of the telephone calls to the hard drive on his laptop computer,
reviewed the calls, and then copied the non-privileged calls that were relevant to the
Andersen investigation and provided those calls to the county attorney prosecuting
Andersen — Mr. Zdrazil. Id. at 143-47.

45. At the conclusion of the testimony regarding Becker County Detention
Facility’s monitoring and/or recording of Andersen’s attorney/client privileged telephone
calls, Judge Irvine castigated Becker County law enforcement for its unconstitutional
and unlawful policy and issued a cease and desist order from the Bench: “Mr. Durkin, |
can tell you that no call will be recorded again on any of those cell phone numbers or
land lines to his attorneys, regardless of what happens here. The jail will stop doing that
immediately.” /Id. atp. 149.
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46. Upon information and belief, the monitoring and/or recording of all
Andersen’s privileged attorney/client telephone calls, the failure of Becker County
Detention Facility personnel to inform Andersen or his attorneys and their agents of the
internal process and/or procedure to have an attorney’s telephone number placed on the
“Do Not Record” list, and the removal of the cellular telephone numbers of Andersen’s
attorneys from the “Do Not Record” list, were performed pursuant to the customs,
practices and/or procedures of the Becker County Detention Facility.

47.  As admitted by Becker County law enforcement officer Joe McArthur, it is
the policy of the Becker County Detention Facility to refuse to place the telephone
numbers of agents of attorneys — including investigators hired by attorneys to investigate
the detainee’s/inmate’s case — on the “Do Not Record” list.

48.  Upon information and belief, defendants continue to follow and abide by
these unlawful and unconstitutional policies, customs and/or practices at the Becker
County Detention Facility.?

B. Dell Holm’s Interaction with the Becker County Detention Facility

49.  On May 3, 2008, Holm was arrested and detained in the Becker County
Detention Facility. Shortly after arriving at the Jail, Holm became aware that other
detainees/inmates had been provided with an “Inmate Handbook™ for the facility. Holm

requested a copy of the Inmate Handbook, but was informed that there were no copies

* With the possible exception of Andersen after Judge Irvine’s reprimand from the bench
during the Omnibus hearing. Andersen has since been transferred from the Becker
County Detention Facility.
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available at that time and that he would be provided with one when additional copies were
printed. Holm has still not been provided with an Inmate Handbook.

50. Becker County Detention Facility personnel never informed Holm — in
writing or verbally — that a process existed whereby he could arrange for a private,
privileged attorney/client telephone call, nor was he ever informed of the existence of a
“Do Not Record” list.

51.  In addition, Holm observed signs posted near the Jail telephones indicating

that all telephone calls were subject to monitoring — with the exception of telephone calls

made to an attorney.

52. After a short time in the Jail, Darlene Rivera (“Rivera”) from the Public
Defender’s office was appointed as Holm’s attorney. Holm communicated with Rivera
regarding privileged aspects of his case and his defense via telephones located in the
Becker County facility. Based on the signs posted by the Jail’s telephones, Holm believed
that his attorney/client telephone calls were private and confidential.

53.  During the time he was communicating with Rivera via the Jail’s telephones,
Holm was informed by other inmates/detainees that Becker County Detention Facility
personnel listen to attorney/client telephone calls. Holm then requested private,
confidential telephone calls with his attorney and others involved with his case. Becker
County Detention Facility personnel again failed to inform Holm of the process and
procedure for arranging a privileged attorney/client telephone call, failed to inform Holm

of the “Do Not Record” list, and instead, informed Holm that all inmate/detainee
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telephone calls are recorded — regardless of whether or not the telephone calls are made to
an attorney.

54.  Holm later overheard Jail personnel discussing aspects of his case that he
disclosed to his attorney during attorney/client telephone calls.

55. A conflict later arose between Holm and Rivera and Holm requested that
another attorney from the Public Defender’s office be appointed to assist with his case.
Attorney Bruce Ringstrom (“Ringstrom™) was then assigned to Holm’s case.

56.  Upon meeting with Holm, Ringstrom informed him that if they needed to
discuss confidential information regarding Holm’s case, Ringstrom would arrange an
attorney/client visit at the Jail facility instead of discussing the privileged information over
the Jail’s telephones. Even then, Ringstrom would many times request that he be allowed
to meet with Holm in the Jail’s library rather than in the designated attorney/client meeting
rooms due to concerns regarding the privacy of his and Holm’s attorney/client discussions.

57. Upon information and belief, pursuant to the customs, practices and/or
procedures of the Becker County Detention Facility, personnel at the Becker County
Detention Facility monitored and recorded Holm’s attorney/client privileged
communications and failed to inform Holm of the internal process and/or procedure to
arrange private, confidential attorney/client telephone calls as well as of the existence of
the “Do Not Record” list. .

58.  Upon information and belief, defendants continue to abide by and follow
these unlawful and unconstitutional policies, customs and/or practices at the Becker
County Detention Facility.

15
80136



C. VWilliam K. Bulmer, II’s Interaction with the Becker County Detention
Facility

59. Bulmer was a colleague of Durkin’s and assisted in representing Andersen
from June 2007 to January 2008 while Andersen was in custody in Becker County
Detention Facility.

60.  During the time Andersen was in custody in the Jail, Bulmer contacted
Andersen via telephone at the Jail on numerous occasions to discuss his case and defense
strategy.

61. Upon information and belief, attorney/client privileged telephone calls
between Bulmer and Andersen were monitored and/or recorded by law enforcement
personnel at the Becker County Detention Facility.

62. At no time during Andersen’s incarceration in the Becker County Detention
Facility did Jail personnel inform Bulmer, Durkin or Andersen that their privileged
attorney/client telephone calls were being monitored and/or recorded.’

63. At no time during Andersen’s incarceration in the Becker County Detention
Facility did Jail personnel inform Bulmer or Andersen that the Jail’s internal policy was to
monitor and/or record all telephone calls — regardless of whether the calls constituted
attorney/client privileged communications — unless the inmate or attorney requested that

specific telephone numbers be placed on the “Do Not Record” list.

? Durkin’s and Andersen’s suspicion that their attorney/client telephone calls were being
monitored were initially corroborated by other inmates in the Becker County Detention
Facility. Later, a jail employee confirmed to Andersen that the Jail was indeed
monitoring and/or recording attorney/client privileged telephone calls.
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64. At no time during Andersen’s incarceration in the Becker County Detention
Facility did Jail personnel inform Bulmer or Andersen that telephone calls made using a
cellular telephone were not protected under the attorney/client privilege.

65. At no time during Andersen’s incarceration in the Becker County Detention
Facility did Jail personnel inform Bulmer or Andersen that telephone calls between
detainees/inmates and investigators hired by their attorneys were not protected by the
attorney/client privilege.

66. At no time during Andersen’s incarceration in the Becker County Detention
Facility did Jail personnel inform Bulmer or Andersen that a “Do Not Record” list even
existed.

V.  CLASS ALLEGATIONS

67. Plaintiffs seek to maintain this action as a class action pursuant to Fed. R.
Civ. P. 23. Plaintiffs bring this action, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly
situated, as the representative members of the following classes:

All detainees/inmates who were held in custody and/or incarcerated in the

Becker County Detention Facility located in Detroit Lakes, Minnesota, and

who had their attorney/client communications monitored and/or recorded

without their or their attorney’s knowledge, at any time from October 15,

2004 (four years prior to the filing of the Complaint in this matter) through

a date to be determined by the court, and all detainees/inmates who

currently are or during the course of this litigation will be held in custody

and/or incarcerated in that jail.

and

All attorneys who represented a detainee/inmate in custody or incarcerated

in the Becker County Detention Facility facility located in Detroit Lakes,

Minnesota, and who had their attorney/client communications monitored

and/or recorded without their or their attorney’s knowledge, at any time
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from October 15, 2004 (four years prior to the filing of the Complaint in

this matter) through a date to be determined by the court, and all attorneys

who currently or during the course of this litigation will represent persons

held in custody and/or incarcerated in that jail.

Plaintiffs reserve the right to narrow or expand these class definitions following the
discovery period.

68.  Prerequisites to a Class Action — Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a). The prerequisites to
maintaining this action as a class action are satisfied as alleged in Paragraphs 58 through
63 below.

69.  Numerosity. While the exact number of the members of the two proposed
classes 1s unknown at this time, the telephone calls of all inmates are monitored and/or
recorded — regardless of whether the calls are attorney/client privileged calls — unless an
inmate or attorney specifically requests that a number be placed on the “Do Not Record”
list. Based on this, the number of individuals in each of the two proposed classes is
estimated to be in the hundreds, and may be in the thousands. It would be impracticable to
bring all, or even a substantial percentage of such persons before the Court as individual
plaintiffs through traditional joinder.

70.  Commonality. There are questions of law or fact common to all members of
each proposed class. The common overarching question of law and fact is whether
defendants violated Plaintiffs’ rights and the attorney/client privilege by monitoring and/or

recording attorney/client privileged telephone calls without the knowledge of either the

attorney or the client.

18
80136



71.  Typicality. The Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the members of
their class because: (a) each had their right to the attorney/client privilege and their right to
privacy violated; and (b) their claims are based on the same legal theory as other class
members.

72.  Adequacy of Representation. Plaintiffs are adequate representatives of the
two classes because: (1) they are willing and able to represent their respective classes and
have every incentive to pursue this action to a successful conclusion; (2) their interests are
not in any way antagonistic to those of the other class members; and (3) they are
represented by counsel experienced in litigating complex class actions in federal court.

73.  Class Actions Maintainable — Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2). Class action status is
appropriate in this case because defendants have acted and/or refused to act on grounds
generally applicable to the classes, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or
corresponding declaratory relief with respect to the classes as a whole.

74.  Class Actions Maintainable — Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3). Class action status
also 1is appropriate because the common questions of law and fact identified above
predominate over questions affecting only individual members. A class action is superior
to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this litigation. Because
of the relatively small monetary value of each class member’s individual claim, few, if
any, class members have an interest in individually controlling the prosecution of separate
actions. To the knowledge of Plaintiffs and their counsel, no class members have
commenced litigation against defendants based on the same or similar allegations as stated
above. It is desirable to concentrate the litigation of the claims in this District because
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defendants are located here. Plaintiffs and their counsel do not anticipate encountering
any unique difficulties in the management of this action as a class action. Finally,
requiring members of the two classes to pursue their claims individually would entail
needless duplication and would waste the resources of all parties involved and the Court.

CAUSE OF ACTION 1

Violation of the First Amendment of the United States Constitution

75.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

76.  Defendants, acting under the color of law, have monitored and/or recorded
detainee/inmate telephone calls at the Becker County Detention Facility with their
attorneys and their attorneys’ agents, pursuant to policies, customs and/or practices
established by the Becker County Detention Facility.

77.  When detainees/inmates, including Andersen and Holm, have come to
believe that Becker County Detention Facility personnel are monitoring and/or recording
their attorney/client privileged telephone conversations, it has produced a serious chilling
effect upon what they are able to communicate to their attorneys via telephone for fear that
Becker County Detention Facility personnel — and ultimately law enforcement personnel
and the prosecution — will be privy to their attorney/client privileged communications.

78.  As a direct and proximate result of severely impeding detainees/inmates from
fully and openly communicating with their attorneys, defendants directly and substantially
have violated the First Amendment right of freedom of speech of plaintiffs and the
members of both putative classes. This violation is actionable under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.
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CAUSE OF ACTION 11

Violation of the Fourth Amendment of the United States Constitution and
Article I, Section 10 of the Minnesota Constitution

79.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

80. Based on the language in the Inmate Handbook, on the signs regarding
telephone calls posted in the Jail, and the protections generally afforded attorney/client
privilege, detainees/inmates have had reason to believe that telephone calls with their
attorneys or their attorneys’ agents would not be monitored and/or recorded, at least until
they became aware that such monitoring and/or recording was occurring.

81.  Plaintiffs have not consented to the monitoring and/or recording of their
privileged attorney/client telephone calls.

82.  Defendants, acting under the color of law, have monitored and/or recorded
detainee/inmate telephone calls at the Becker County Detention Facility with their
attorneys and/or their attorneys’ agents pursuant to defendants’ policies, customs and/or
practices.

83.  Defendants thereby have directly and substantially violated the right against
unreasonable searches of Anderson and the members of the detainee/inmate putative
class protected by the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article 1,
Section 10 of the Minnesota Constitution. The former violation is actionable under

42 U.S.C. § 1983.
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CAUSE OF ACTION 111

Violation of the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution

84.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

85. Based on the language in the Inmate Handbook, on the signs regarding
telephone calls posted in the Jail, and the protections generally afforded attorney/client
privilege, detainees/inmates have had reason to believe that telephone calls with their
attorneys or their attorneys’ agents would not be monitored and/or recorded, at least until
they have become aware that such monitoring and/or recording has been occurring.

86.  Through these privileged attorney/client communications,
detainees/inmates have discussed all aspects of their cases with their attorneys and/or
their attorneys’ agents, including evidentiary issues, potential witnesses and defense
strategies.

87.  Defendants, acting under the color of law, have monitored and/or recorded
detainee/inmate telephone calls at the Becker County Detention Facility with their
attorneys and/or their attorneys’ agents, pursuant to defendants’ policies, customs and/or
practices.

88.  Upon information and belief, information obtained from these monitored
and/or recorded privileged attorney/client telephone calls has been utilized by Becker
County Detention Facility personnel, or provided to Becker County law enforcement
personnel, for the purpose of assisting in the prosecution of the detainees’/inmates’
criminal cases.
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89. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ policies, customs and/or
practices, Andersen, Holm and the members of the detainee/inmate putative class have
suffered direct and substantial violations of their Fifth Amendment right against self-
incrimination which is actionable under 42 U.S.C. § 1983."

CAUSE OF ACTION IV

Violation of the Sixth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution and Article 1,
Section 6 of the Minnesota Constitution

90.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

91. Based on the Inmate handbook provisions and the signs posted in the Jail
regarding attorney/client telephone calls, the failure of Becker County Detention Facility
personnel to provide detainees/inmates with any information regarding the “Do Not
Record” list, and the basic precepts of American jurisprudence regarding attorney/client
communications, the detainee/inmate plaintiffs had a reasonable expectation of privacy
in their attorney/client telephone calls.

92.  Defendants, acting under the color of law, monitored and/or recorded
detainee/inmate telephone calls at the Becker County Detention Facility with their
attorneys and/or their attorneys’ agents, pursuant to defendants’ policies, customs and/or

practices.

* Defendants’ policy, custom and/or practice also constitutes a violation of

detainees’/inmates’ right of due process of law under the Fifth Amendment. This claim
will be addressed in the portion of the Complaint dealing with defendants’ Fourteenth
Amendment violations set forth below.
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93.  As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ policies, customs and/or
practices, Andersen, Holm and the members of the detainee/inmate putative class have
suffered violations of the attorney/client privilege and their right to the effective
assistance of counsel protected by the Sixth Amendment to the United States
Constitution and Article I, Section 6 of the Minnesota Constitution. The former
violation is actionable under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

CAUSE OF ACTION V

Due Process Violations under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the
United States Constitution and Article I, Section 7 of
the Minnesota Constitution

94.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

95. Defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices set forth in this Amended
Complaint, including in Counts I through IV above, have deprived Andersen, Holm and
the members of the detainee/inmate putative class of the ability to have their innocence
or guilt fairly determined. This deprivation violates their privileges and immunities
protected by the due process of law under the Fourteenth Amendment of the United
States Constitution and their liberty interest under the Fourth, Fifth and Sixth
Amendments of the United States Constitution protected by the Fifth Amendment of the
United States Constitution. These violations of their due process rights are actionable
under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. This deprivation also violates their due process rights protected

by Article I, Section 7 of the Minnesota Constitution.
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CAUSE OF ACTION VI

Violation of Title 11l of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968 — 18 U.S.C. § 2510, et seq.

96.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

97.  Defendants, acting under the color of law, intercepted telephone calls of
detainees/inmates at the Becker County Detention Facility to their attorneys and/or their
attorneys’ agents, without the consent or knowledge of either participant to the calls and
in violation of their reasonable expectations.

98.  Defendants’ actions violated the rights of plaintiffs and the members of
both putative classes under Title III of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act
of 1968 — 18 U.S.C. § 2510, ef seq.

CAUSE OF ACTION VII

Violation of Federal Common Law

99.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

100. Defendants, acting under the color of law, automatically monitored and/or
recorded a large number of detainee/inmate telephone calls at the Becker County
Detention Facility.

101. Upon information and belief, defendants listened to the recordings of

detainees’/inmates’ telephone calls.
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102. Upon information and belief, a number of these recorded telephone calls
included statements by either the detainees/inmates or the individuals with whom they
were speaking that were favorable to the detainees’/inmates’ criminal defense, were
material to either the guilt or punishment of the detainee/inmate, were relevant to the
credibility of a witness involved in the detainees’/inmates’ criminal cases and/or
contained exculpatory evidence.

103. Defendants provided recordings of relevant telephone calls to the
prosecution in furtherance of the criminal cases against the detainees/inmates, except
that they allegedly destroyed any recordings of telephone calls that were deemed to be
attorney/client privileged telephone calls.

104. Neither defendants nor the prosecution in any of the detainees’/inmates’
criminal cases provided copies of the relevant, non-privileged recorded calls to the
detainees/inmates or their counsel.

105. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ policies, customs and/or
practices, the federal common law right of Anderson, Holm and the members of the
detainee/inmate putative class to receive any evidence in defendants’ or the
prosecution’s possession that is favorable or material to their defense, and/or is
exculpatory, has been violated.

CAUSE OF ACTION VIII

Violation of Minn, Stat. § 481.10, subd. 2.

106. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in

this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.
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107. Defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth in this Amended
Complaint, including in Counts I through IV above, have deprived Anderson, Holm and
the members of the detainee/inmate putative class of their right to private and
confidential telephone calls with their attorneys and/or their attorneys’ agents as
guaranteed by Minnesota law.

108. Defendants’ actions constitute a direct violation of Minn. Stat. § 481.10.

CAUSE OF ACTION IX

Violation of Minn, Stat. § 626A.02.

109. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

110. Defendants, acting under the color of law, intercepted telephone calls of
detainees/inmates at the Becker County Detention Facility to their attorneys and/or their
attorneys’ agents, without the consent or knowledge of either participant to the calls and
in violation of their reasonable expectations.

111. Defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices violated the right of
plaintiffs and members of both putative classes to be free from illegal wiretaps, and
violated Minn. Stat. § 626A.02.

CAUSE OF ACTION X

Violation of Minnesota Common Law

112. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in

this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.
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113. Defendants, acting under the color of law, monitored and/or recorded
detainees’/inmates’ attorney/client privileged telephone calls at the Becker County
Detention Facility with neither the knowledge nor the consent of the participants to the
call.

114. Plaintiffs and other class members were not informed of the processes or
procedures whereby attorney telephone numbers could be placed on the Jail’s “Do Not
Record” list, nor were they informed by Jail personnel that such a list existed.

115. Upon information and belief, Becker County Detention Facility personnel
do not inform plaintiffs and other class members of the processes or procedures — or
even the existence of the “Do Not Record™ list either in writing or verbally.

116. Based on the protections generally afforded attorney/client
communications, and because defendants did not inform plaintiffs and other class
members of the processes and procedures regarding the “Do Not Record” list, it was
reasonable for attorneys and detainees/inmates to believe that their telephone calls with
clients held in the Becker County Detention Facility would not be monitored and/or
recorded, at least until they would have become aware that such monitoring and
or/recording was occurring.

117. Defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth in this Amended
Complaint are a gross intrusion upon the attorney/client privilege and the fundamental
right to privacy and seclusion of plaintiffs and the members of both putative classes

guaranteed by Minnesota law.
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118. Defendants’ actions shock the conscience, are patently offensive to
reasonable members of society and are actionable pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 466.02.

CAUSE OF ACTION X1

Violation of Minnesota Common Law — Misappropriation of
Attorney Work Product

119. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations contained in
this Amended Complaint as if set forth separately in this Cause of Action.

120. Telephone communications between the attorney plaintiffs and their clients
held in custody or incarcerated in the Becker County Detention Facility contained
attorney work product information, including but not limited to, legal analysis and
advice regarding evidence, testimony, potential witnesses and defense strategies relevant
to detainees’/inmates’ criminal cases.

121. This attorney work product information 1s trade secret information in that it
had independent economic value and was not known or readily ascertainable by
defendants, the prosecution in the detainees’/inmates’ criminal cases, or anyone who was
not privy to the telephone conversation.

122. Attorney plaintiffs and other members of their putative class made every
effort to maintain the confidentiality of this attorney work product information.

123. Upon losing its confidential and privileged status, the value of attorney
work product information is severely diminished. This is especially true in the criminal
defense context when attorney work product information is disclosed to law enforcement
personnel and/or the prosecution involved in the case.
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124. Upon information and belief, attorney work product information obtained
from defendants’ improper policy of monitoring and/or recording privileged
attorney/client telephone calls was utilized by Becker County Detention Facility
personnel, or provided to Becker County law enforcement personnel, for the purpose of
assisting in the prosecution of criminal cases of detainees/inmates represented by the
attorney plaintiffs.

125. Defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth in this Amended
Complaint caused the misappropriation of attorney plaintiffs’ work product, severely
limited the attorney plaintiffs’ ability to prepare a defense on behalf of their clients and
substantially lessened the value of the attorney plaintiffs’ efforts.

126. Defendants’ actions have caused the wrongful acquisition, misappropriation
and/or use of attorney work product information obtained from privileged attorney/client
telephone calls, and have damaged plaintiff attorneys by devaluing their work product
both substantively and economically.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of the proposed classes, pray
for judgment as follows:

A. That this Court certify the two proposed classes and appoint named plaintiffs
as representatives of the two classes respectively, and that plaintiffs’ counsel be designated

as Class Counsel for both classes;
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B. That defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth above, be
determined and adjudged to be in violation of the Constitution of the United States and the
Minnesota Constitution;

C. That defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth above, be
determined and adjudged to be in violation of federal and Minnesota wiretap statutes;

D. That defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth above, be
determined and adjudged to be in violation of Minnesota statutes regarding attorney/client
communications with individuals in custody in Minnesota correctional facilities;

E. That defendants’ policies, customs and/or practices, as set forth above, be
determined and adjudged to be in wviolation of federal and Minnesota common law
regarding invasion of an individual’s right to privacy;

F. That this Court enter a temporary restraining order and preliminary and
permanent injunctions ordering defendants to refrain from continuing the policy of
improperly monitoring and/or recording attorney/client telephone calls as set forth in this
Amended Complaint;

G. That this Court also enter preliminary and permanent injunctions ordering
defendants to revise the Inmate Handbook and the signage in the facility to properly
inform detainee/inmates of the processes and procedures whereby attorneys’ and
attorneys’ agents’ telephone numbers are placed on the “Do Not Record” list, and ordering
defendants to properly inform attorneys calling the Jail or entering the facility of these

same processes and procedures verbally and in writing;
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H. That the plaintiffs and members of the two classes be awarded such other and
further legal and equitable relief as may be found appropriate and as the Court may deem
just or equitable;

L. That the plaintiffs and members of the two classes be awarded monetary
damages, including presumed, special and general damages to be determined at trial;

J. That the plaintiffs and members of the two classes be awarded all applicable
pre-judgment and post-judgment interest;

K. That this Court award plaintiffs and the members of the two classes their
class action contingency attorneys’ fees, expenses and costs, or in the alternative, their
attorneys’ fees, expenses and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988; and

L. That this Court award plaintiffs and members of the two classes such other
and further relief as the Court deems just and equitable.

DATED: October 15, 2008 Respectfully submitted,

SPRENGER & LANG, PLLC

s/ Jeffrey A. Abrahamson
Mara R. Thompson (MN No. 196125)
Dan Bryden (MN No. 302284)
Jeffrey A. Abrahamson (MN No. 338187)
SPRENGER & LANG, PLLC
310 Fourth Avenue S.
Suite 600
Minneapolis, MN 55403
Telephone: (612) 871-8910
Fax: (612) 871-9270

Attorneys’ for Plaintiffs
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16. Becker County jail no longer accepts stamps*, envelopes*, paper*, or magazines of any
'kind to be brought in from the outside. As always, inmates will be able to purchase them* on
the canteen. Magazines have been purchased for inmates to read. Should any of these items be
sent or brought in, they will be refused or placed in the inmate’s property.

" 17. You will not throw candy wrappers or other trash into the toilets, floor drains or on the floors in
any areas of the jail.

“18. Meals will be announced and served by staff. Residents must pick up their own tray, or they will
not receive the meal.

+ 19. Televisions will be furnished in each block as a privilege. Residents in that block are
responsible for the TV. Any damage or misuse of this privilege will cause it to be removed.
Television hours are 06:30 A.M. to 11:00 P.M. only. This includes Dorms 1 & 2.

:The volume will be kept at a reasonable level.
There will be NO fighting over the channel selections, majority rules!
The remote control for the TV will be left on the dayroom table when not in use.

' 20. All phone calls and messages to and from the Becker County Jail are monitored and/or
recorded. This includes the visiting booths. Exceptions are phone calls made to an attorney.

. 21. All incoming and outgoing mail is subject to search, except for attorney-client mail. Leave all
other envelopes unsealed.

.22. Inmates will put their first and last names on all out-going mail, or it will not be processed.
. Jail address is: P.0. Box 702 Detroit Lakes, MN 56502

- 23. IF YOU ATTEND ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROGRAMS:
.~ CHURCH SERVICES - BIBLE STUDY - G.E.D.-C.D.-AA.
YOU WILL BE EXPECTED TO PAY ATTENTION, AND NOT BE DISRUPTIVE IN ANY WAY;
OR YOU WILL NOT BE ALLOWED TO ATTEND.

INMATE CO-PAYMENT FOR HEALTH CARE |

- Any inmate of the Becker County Detention facility will be charged a co-pay for over-the-counter
medication, medical, dental and mental health care services that are inmate initiated. No inmate
will be denied medical care services because of inability to pay, but a'dept will be entered against
the inmate’s account. If the inmate receives any funds, it will automatically be deducted from
_his/her account to pay for the outstanding co-pay assessment. The co-pay fees are:

R Inmate request for care (nurse request): $5. 00, N .
Refusmg to  go to scheduled or requested appomtments $5 00/

-;Over-the-counter medlcatlons "(See Canteen List for amounts] _.
There will be NO charge for staff initiated visits, prescnptnon medication, TB screening
assessments and regulated health care services. A grievance regarding questlons disputing a co-

pay charge will be presented to the Facmty Admmlstrator in writing.

Exhibit 2
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1

STATE OF MINNESOTA
COUNTY OF BECKER
State of Minnesota,
Plaintiff,
vs.
Kenneth Eugene Andersen, )

Defendant. )

IN DISTRICT COURT

SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

OMNIBUS HEARING

FILE NO. CR-07-171

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDING

The above-entitled matter came on for hearing

before the Honorable Peter M.

District Court,

Irvine,

in the Courthouse,

Judge of the

in the City of

Detroit Lakes, County of Becker and State of Minnesota,

on the 7th day of March, 2008.

APPEARANCES

Mr. Al ZzZdrazil

Agssistant Attorney General
Bremer Tower, Suite 1800
445 Minnesota Street

8t. Paul, MN 55101-21343
and

Mr. Michael Fritz

Becker County Attorney
P.O. Box 749

Detroit Lakes, MN 56502-0749
Rory P. Durkin

Attorney at Law .

403 Jackson St., Suite 305

Anoka, MN 55303

FOR THE STATE

FOR THE DEFENDANT

REPORTED BY LAVONNE J. RICHARDS - RMR, CRR, CPE
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2
I NDEZX
WITNESS PAGE
DANIEL BAUMANN
Direct Examination by Mr. Durkin 8
Cross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 41
Redirect Examination by Mr. Durkin 55
Recross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 60
Direct Examination by Mr. Durkin 62
Cross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 82
GLEN FLADMARK
Direct Examination by Mr. Durkin 86
Cross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 90
JOSH BOGATZ
Direct Examination by Mr. Durkin 97
Cross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 98
JOSEPH McARTHUR
Direct Examination by Mr. Durkin 114
Cross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 124
Redirect Examination by Mr. Durkin 134
Recross-Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 138
DANIEL BAUMANN
Direct Examination by Mr. Zdrazil 139
Cross-Examination by Mr. Durkin 143
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3

The following proceedings occurred,
to-wit:

THE COURT: This is the case of State of
Minnesota versus Kenneth Eugene Andersen. Defendant is
present, and with him is?

MR. DURKIN: Good afternoon, Your Honor.
Rory Durkin, D-U-R-K-I-N, representing Mr. Andersen who
stands present -- or sits presently before you.

THE COURT: You pronounce your last name
Durkin?

MR. DURKIN: Durkin.

MR. ZDRAZIL: Good afternoon, Your
Honor. Al Zdrazil from the Minnesota Attorney General's
Office representing the State of Minnesota.

THE COURT: And your name is pronounced
Zdrazil?

MR. ZDRAZIL: Zdrazil, vyes, Your Honor,
just like the country Brazil but with a D sound.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

And Mr. Fritz is present, as well, from
the County Attorney's Office.

This is the time and place for an
omnibus hearing. There have been a number of motions
filed by the Defendant, and I have reviewed those

motions and documents attached. And for purposes of
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any other sort of discovery that is appropriate when it

is requested. At this point in time we will let you see

what you have and we will address it down the road.
Anything else?

MR. DURKIN: I do. I have --. Your
Honor, I have another motion. I believe I -- you should
have a copy of it in your file. I think it is motion to
dismiss or to ROR Mr. Andersen or significahtly reduce
the bail by virtue of Minnesota United States
constitution violations, as well as a violation of
Minnesota Statute 481.10, and I believe I sent a -- I
sent a quick basically statement of facts and a guick
little memo; It could have been a little more thorough
but I was pretty pressed nor time when I discovered the
crux of what was happening.

The boﬁtom line, Your Honor, is I
received -- I received --. You know, what is funny is
Mr. Andersen and I and our team have felt for a long
time that our attorney/client privilege has been broken
and violated by the State. Your know, we just knew
because it seems like everything that we did and have
done, the State has been there like one step ahead of
us. We talk on the phone and we talk about witnesses
that we're going to go see. The State will have

interviewed that witness like an hour beforehand. Just
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a lot of little things. And at one point it was so bad
that I said you know what? Let's do something here.
Let's see if they are listening in on our attorney phone
calls, or if they are listening on the private, you
know, Mr. Fladmark is a necessary third party,
attorney/client privilege clearly the case law rule the
attorney/client privilege goes with him. Yet I knew
that they were listening in on the conversations that he
was having. 8o I said vou know what? I said, Glen, Why
don't you tell Kenny -- and I had never come up and met
him in jail and I hadn't really seen him in jail. My
associate, Mr. Bulmer, did most of that. So I said to
him, I said you know what? Why don't you tell Kenny
that I feel bad for him that he has been jailed for so
long. The next time he comes up I am going to bring him
some drugs, sneak him in some drugs. And I tell you,
Your Honor, the very next day deputies started coming up
to Mr. Andersen and asking him, hey, when is other
lawyer, Rory Durkin, coming up to you? Very suspicious.
Can't prove anything, but it is still super suspicious.
So I am preparing for this hearing, la,
la, la, and I get this memo which I attached to my
motion, oh, and alsco there was some significant problems
back in December with respect to the phone company that

is used by the jail and getting the right numbers on.
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That is why we thought there was a problem as well, but
then I get this letter, and it is Exhibit No. 1 attached
to'my motion, and I look at the last page and I am just
absolutely dumfounded. I mean I am so dumfounded that I
don't know what to do because it says cell number
612-384-7003, 612-272-0885, and 612-636-2576 were
removed from the no record list, meaning that they are
subject to monitoring and recording from the jail.
384-7003, attorney William Bulmer. 612-272-0885, Rory
Patrick Durkin. 612-636-2576, Mark Gabriel Giancola, my
partner. Since December 5th. And Mr. Andersen has
called on weekends. We have spoke for hours on the
weekends and at nights and on my cell phone because we,
yvou know, as attorneys you travel around and are always
on the road. That is probably a vast majoriﬁy of our
communications. And I get this motion and I am
dumfounded. Now everything makes sense. It is not in
the jail handbook. 1In fact, what is in the jail
handbook is that that information is specifically
protected, and it has not been. There is absolutely no
way that he can participate in his defense, that I can
speak with him, and that I can plan a defense and we can
have a fair trial because the jail has been and is
listening to our phone calls and monitoring our

meetings. And I'1ll tell you something else, Your Honor.
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If you go up into that jail and you go into those
interview room, the little joke between the inmates is,
hey, attorney, bring up some duct tape because they
monitor us. And vou go look at those little monitors
and those intercoms and there is little tiny square
plieces where people have put duct tape, ripped off, duct
tape, ripped it off, duct tape, ripped it off because we
all know. Can I prove it? No. But I do have this in
writing -- in writing that supports my motion. And, if
necessary, I mean I believe I subpoenaed Mr. McArthur
with respect to that issue, and I think I requested that
he bring the jail handbook, the little slip of paper
that is above the jail phone and something else that my
brain is not remembering right now, but I will remember
it in a moment. So I guess maybe I could call him to
the stand right now.

THE COURT: All right.

Is Officer McArthur out there?

JOSEPH McARTHUR, a witness, called by the
Defendant, being first duly sworn, testified on his
oath, as follows:

PHE COURT: State your name and spell
your last name, please.
THE WITNESS: Joseph Henry McArthur,

M-C-A-R-T-H-U-R.
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THE CQURT: Mr. Durkin.

BY MR. DURKIN DIRECT EXAMINATION
Q. You are Joe McArthur; correct?
A. Yes.
Q. My name is Rory Durkin. I represent

Mr. Andersen. I don't believe we have ever met; is that
fair?

A. Yes.

Q. But we have spoke on the phone a couple

times; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. What -- and I want to be as respectful
as I can, so I am wondering what would you -- is
Captain -- Captain probably the best title for you?

Should I just call you Captain McArthur; is that okay?

A. That would be fine.

Q. All right. Captain McArthur, you are in
charge of the jail calls, is that correct, or the jail
phone system and right now monitoring the jail calls and
what numbers get put into the system; is that correct?

A. Yes. Well, yeah.

Q. Can you explain, and maybe to me,

Mr. zZdrazil, and the Court how that process works?
A. The process for putting --. Could you

be more, I guess, specific on? Do you mean
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attorney/client calls?

Q. I go to jail for whatever 'cuz I am bad
in court and I have to spend a couple weeks in jail.
There is some phone calls that I want to make and some
numbers that I want to call out. Do you understand
that?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, some of those numbers might be
protected by the attorney/client privilege, my
attorney's phone number; is that a fair statement?

A, Yes.

Q. And then others might be subject to
recording, the phone calls to my brother or my girl; is
that a fair statement?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, how --? You tell the
inmates at the beginning and give them a handbook;
correct? A jail handbook?

A. Yes, we do.

Q. And that jail handbook explains the
phone call procedure; correct?

A. It explains the phone call procedure,
ves.

Q. and it tells them that phone calls to

their attorney are protected by the attorney/client




Case 0:0DcePE0Rea THURLE  Document 1.2 Filed 10/15/2008 Page 5 of 3Bl6

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

privilege and are not subject to recording; correct?

A, No.

Q. It doesn't say that?

A. No, it doesn't.

Q. Do you have --? May I have just a

second, please?
A, Yes.
Q. In fact, I requested in my subpoena that

you bring that. Do you have a copy of that handbook?

A. Yes, I do.
Q. Would you mind grabbing it? 1In fact,
would you mind grabbing --? I think I --. I am sorry.

I'll have it in a second. Here we go. Any and all
records and/or information related to jail calls of
Kenneth Andersen, any and all calls made by Kenneth
Andersen that were monitor recorded, copy of the inmate
handbook and copy of inmate phone call phone use sign
posted in the jail. Did you bring those things?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Can you grab them and it would make it
ecasier for you so you don't keep going back and forth in
getting them?

MR. DURKIN: Is that all right, Your
Honor? The judge said yeah.

THE COURT: Who has them?
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THE WITNESS: I have them -- I have them

out in the hallway. Can I go get them?

Q. (Mr. Durkin continuing) Do you need a
second?

A. Okay. And what specifically are you
requesting?

Q. Can you go to jail handbook where it

talks about attorney phone calls, or the inmate
handbook? I am sorry.
A. Okay.
MR. DURKIN: May I approach?
THE COURT: You may.
Q. (Mr. Durkin continuing) Can you read
No. 37
A. Yes. It says, "Any non-attorney/client
privilege phone calls made from Becker County Jail will
be monitored and/or recorded."
Q. Basically what you tell the inmates is
that their attorney/client privilege phone calls won't

be recorded; is that correct?

A, It doesn't say anything about that.

0. But that is what you tell them; is that
correct?

A. Not to my knowledge, no.

0. So you don't tell them --? So do you
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tell them that you are going to record their attorney
calls?

A. T don't book people into the jail.

Q. Okay. Well, you are in charge of the

jail telephone policy; correct?

A. I am in charge of the jail, ves, but
o ‘

Q. And the telephone policy? Yeg Or no,
please.

A, Yes.

Q. Now, do you tell the inmates that you

are going to record their attorney calls?

A. T cannot answer that question.

Q. Is it in -- is it in that inmate
handbook?

A. No. No.

Q. Okay. It just says all

non-attorney/client privileged calls will be recorded;
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you make it a habit to
record --? I take that back. Strike that. Now, do you
have a copy of that sheet that hangs over the phone?

A. I am not quite sure what you are talking

about, a sheet.
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Q. Yeah. There is a piece of paper in the

jail area inmate phone?

A. Like this one (indicating)?

'Q. Yeah. 1Is that it? May I have it for a
second?

A. There is actually two.

Q. . I don't need that. That's all right.

Forget about that for right now. I am showing you a
letter. On the bottom of it is marked 2830. It is just
what is called a Bateg number, 2830 and 2831. Do you

remember that letter?

A. Yes.

Q. And you wrote that to Mr. Fritz; is that
correct?

A, Yes.

Q. And he is the county attorney right now

up here in Becker; right?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, if I could take you to 2831 of that
letter, you indicated on No. 3, can you read that for
me?

A, It says, "Cell phone numbers of
612-384-7003, 612-272-0885, and 612-636-2576 were
removed from the no record list on December 5th, 2007."

Q. Thank you. Now, what that means is that
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means that those numbers are subject to monitoring

and/or recording; is that correct?

A. They are subject to recording.

Q. But not monitoring?

A, Yeg and no.

Q. Okay. Can you explain that for me?

A. They -- those calls would be subject to

random monitoring by jail staff in the usual course of
their duties when they randomly look through jail calls.
Q. Because I mean it is fair to say that at
gsome point you guys were ordered oY requested or
suggested that you monitor Mr. Andersen's phone calls

and record them all; isn't that fair?

A No.

Q. It is not fair to say that?

A. That's correct.

0. So then T don't have from you --. So is

it your testimony right now on the stand that I have not
received months and hours and hours and hours of
recorded telephone conversations made by Mr. Andersen?
Is that your testimony?

A. I believe your guestion is that we were
asked to do it. We were not asked to do it. It is a
matter of standard policy and procedure that the

recording is done. No one has asked us to record them.
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It is just a normal course of what happens up there.
Q. perfect. So it is a normal course of

what happens up there. His phone calls get recorded;

right?
A. Yes, every inmate.
Q. Okay. But his, too, Mr. Andersen's?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. When they are not on the no

record list, they get recorded pretty much?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And the three numbers were taken
off the no record list on December 5th, 2007; is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

MR. DURKIN: May I have just a second,
Your Honor, please?
Q. (Mr. Durkin continuing} Now, when you

make a recording of these calls you generate a report

with the -- with the recording; is that correct?
A, Could you clarify that a little more?
Q. Sure. You record a --. Let's say you

record a phone call; okay? Are you with me?
A, A little bit.

Q. And then --. Well, vou just told me you
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record every inmate's phone; right?

A. Recording is done automatically.

Q. Okay. It is done automatically. ©Oh, so
if it is not on the no record list, it is recorded
automatically; is that --? I am sorry. I misunderstood
that. 1Is that how that goes then?

A. I don't know how to answer that. I
don't know what the --. Every inmate -- every inmate's
calls are subject to recording unless they are on the no

record list.

Q. Well, now -- and don't get mad or swear.
A, No, I am not mad.
Q. I am not trying to give you a hard time.

I am just trying to understand.

A. Yup.

Q. Because you just said --. And I'll
speak slower. And they just -- sorry. And they just
. said -- you just said that they were automatically

recorded, but then you also said that they were subject
to recording. And that is two very different things.
'Ccuz if they are automatically recorded, there is no
subject to. They are‘just automatically recorded;
right?

A. I don't remember saying subject to, but

they are automatically recorded.
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Q. Perfect. So you get a phone call that
has been automatically recorded and you are going to
send that recording to Mr. Zdrazil or Mr. Fritz. You

don't just send them a CD; right?

A. No.
Q. You will put a time and a date and who
the phone call was to and roughly maybe -- maybe how

long the phone call is; fair enough? Sometimes?

A, If T completed a report it would be
information subject to that, yes.

Q. Perfect. And sometimes you will even --
you will get -- and I don't know, you will get somebody
to transcribe it; is that true?

A. They will be transcribed by officers,
yves.

Q. Okay. And then that -- okay. So they
will be recorded, a report generated, and sometimes a

transcript generated as well; correct?

A. Certain calls that do get monitored,
ves.
Q. But still automatically recorded; right?
A. Yes.
MR. DURKIN: I don't have any further
questions. Thank you very much.

THE COURT: Mr. zZdrazil.
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MR. ZDRAZIL: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. ZDRAZIL CROSS-EXAMINATION
Q. Captain McArthur, the phone system at
the jail -- let's clarify. The jail is here in Detroit

Lakes; is that correct?

A, Yes, it is.

Q. Is the phone system operated by a
private contractor contracted with the county?

A. The --. Yeah, the phone -- the phone
system is put in by a private contractor, and they are
the ones that keep it up and running, recording the

calls, different things like that; yes.

Q. And they maintain the equipment?
A. Yes.
Q. And where are those recordings then

kept? Where is the hard drive or the tape player?

A. Is up in the jail control.

Q. So the recording is actually kept here
in Becker County?

A, Yes, that's corfect.

Q. Now, you talked about deputies randomly
monitoring phone calls.

A, Yes.

Q. Tell us about that.

A. As part of jail security to make
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sure --. There are several, a few different reasons why
the jail phone calls are monitored. And, you know, the
main ones are for safety and security of the jail.
Sometimes we have inmates that have personal problems
and they may be thinking about hurting themselves, and

the correctional officers listen to those type

_conversations to -- to discover anything like that that

might be happening, or any plan for escape or anything
like that. There is basically two different ways that
they listen. There is either a random sampling. There
is no scientific method used to that, to my knowledge,
what I have been told. It is just that the correctional
officer will go in from time to time. They will just go
into different cell block recordings and they will just
click on different things to see 1f they would run
across a conversation where somebody is talking about
those type of things. And then the second type is where
if they get specific information about an inmate who is
planning to harm themselves, or may be making plans for
escape, or to hurt another correctional officer or
something like that, then they will start specifically
singling out that inmate's cell block and they will
start listening to the majority of the calls from it.
And those are the correctional officers' duties in

listening to jail phone calls.
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Q. and the correctional officers are people
other than deputies; is that correct?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. They are people who run the jail and
maintain the jail, move the inmates in and out of the
jail and around the jail?

A. Yes, that's correct.

0. Now, if --. Is there any policy in the
Sheriff's Department governing those correctional
officers as to what they should do if they are listening
to a phone call and they become aware that it is a phone
call between an inmate and the inmate's attorney?

A. Yes. They are aware and are told that
they are to terminate that call and not listen any
further.

Q. wWith regard to this case, have you
become aware at any time during this case of any
correctional officer who has liéténed to a phone call
petween the Defendant and his attorney?

A, No.

Q. Have you heard any information or
observed anvbody doing any investigation that you have
in any way thought might have been initiated because
somebody had overheard a conversation between Ken

Andersen and his attorneys?
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A. No, I have not.

Q. Now, you mentioned that there has also
been specific monitoring of Ken Andersen's phone; is
that correct?

A, Yes, that's correct.

Q. and who has specifically been monitoring
his phone calls?

A. Tt would be myself and Agent Baumann,

Q. Are yvou the only two people who have
been specifically listening to Ken Andersen's phone
calls?

A. Yes and no. Yes, we are the main ones
involved in it, and then on occasion when Agent
Baumann --. Everything that was heard would be
channeled to him. Initially he took all the calls and
he went through them. At one point through this T was
filtering out some of the calls. If I heard some, I
would give them to him and then --. Well, let me
restate that 'cuz that is not correct. Initially he
tock all the calls, and then around the beginning of
July it was becoming too much for him to do, so I
actually started going through some of the calls then
and just filtering out some of the missed calls and
other inmates that are in the cell and filtered them

out, and then I would --. He would stop by the office.
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I would give them those calls, and then he would take
them and continue to go through them and monitor then,
until about August 16th or August 17th., I would have to
refresh my memory in looking at it again. At that time
he was advised -- he told me he was advised he didn't
have to do any more constant monitoring of the calls.
And so then at that time I agreed to -- I would go
through them, listen to the ones where he was talking to
other citizens and family members and stuff like that,
and then I would report to him then if I heard anything
that -- if I thought it was evidentiary value or
something like that. And that was starting around the
17th of August.

Q. And then, Captain McArthur, has anybody
besides you and Dan Baumann done this initial screening
of the Defendant's cails, élearly once you found the
call of interest somebody else might listen to it, and
it may have been disclosed to defense, but the initial
screening has anybody besides you and Dan Baumann done
that?

A, No.

Q. If vou become aware that a phone call is
between Kenneth Andersen and his attorneys, what do you
do?

A, I terminate that call. I stop listening
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immediately, and then I delete that call from the system
or from --

Q. Now, in the process of doing this, have
you heard anything in any phone calls between the
Defendant and his attorneys, or for that matter, --.
Well, let me ask. What if you find out it is a call
between the Defendant and investigator hired by the
attorneys, what do you do?

A. I don't listen to those either.

Q. In the process of thig, have you heard
anything in those calls, maybe before you realize i; is
to an attorney or to the investigator? Have you heard
anything that is of any relatioﬁship to this case, any
information about this case, about the facts of the
case, witnesses?

A, No.

Q. Have you initiated any sort of
investigation because of anything you have heard in
those calls?

A, No.

Q. Now, if an inmate or an attorney wants
their number blocked, and let's clarified what blocked
means. If a number is blocked, am I correct that that
is entered into the computer system that records the

calls? And if those numbers are dialed, there is just
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no recording made?

A. That's my understanding, yes, is that
that number is --. I don't do the process of putting
those numbers in, but the jail staff does, and then that
number is no longer recorded is my understanding.

Q. How doeg an inmate or an attorney get a
number blocked?

A. In order for an inmate to get a number
blocked they have to make é request for that number to
be blocked.

0. Do they do that in writing or verbally?

A. Well, that has changed from the time
that this has started to the time since he has been in.
And I had talked with the old jail administrator who had
retired in November. The usual way to do it was for the
inmate to actually -- what they would have them do is
have the inmate call Reliance to regquest it, the number.
Reliance would do the investigation into assuring that
that number is an inmate number, and then -- or excuse
me -- is an attorney number, and then once they confirm
that, then that number would be put in, I think an
attorney in good standing, that it was actually a law
firm's number, and then that number would be put in as a
blocked ﬁumber.

Q. And Reliance is the private company that
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manages the phone system?

A. Yes.

Q. How and when did that procedure get
changed?

A, Sometime in 2007, and I don't know the

exact date they did a software upgrade to the Reliance
system. And then what has been explained to me, in
talking to a Reliance representative, is that when that
happened, they changed the way that those numbers were
blocked. And at that time Reliance still took the --
can take the initial call for the request for the
blocking, and then they still do the investigation into
it, to make sure it is that proper number and stuff, and
then they put that into --. Once they confirm it is
attorney's number, they put it into a blocked status
then at that time, well, a free status, and then I think
it is auﬁomatically blocked. And then at that time the
jail staff has to go in and make the final
determination, or the jail itself, as to if that number
will remain blocked or not blocked.

Q. So that is an additional step over what
there was before?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you know when the regquest was put in,

and specifically I won't list them all again, but the
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numbers that Mr. Durkin recited to you on the record?

A. Yeg, I do.

Q. Do you know when the regquest was made to
block those numbers?

A. To my knowledge a request wasn't made
to --. That request to block those numbers, to my
knowledge, was made on December 3rd.

Q. And on December 5th they were unblocked?

A. Yes. It is my understanding in talking
to the jail staff on this, when that request come in, it
was by phone to a member of the jail staff who wrote the
numbers down.  And then that jail staff person then
called Reliance and gave them those numbers. And then
at that time they were still under the impression that
that's just what they did. And they called Reliance
with the numbers and then Reliance did the stuff behind
it. But what Reliance did is Reliance did that initial
check, but then they told the jail it is up to you to
decide if -you are going to permanently block that number
or not. And they had to make the decision at that time
to do the final blocking or unblocking of those calls.

Q. And beéause they were cell phones they
unblocked them?

A. Yes. Sergeant Rostad came to my office

with the question, and he told me about the change and
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how things are done. And then I said to him, well,
what's the policy of what you do with these types of
phone calls? And he says we block -- we block
attorney/client office numbers but‘we don't block -- we

don't block cell phone numbers.

Q. Why not cell phone numbers?

A O0f anybody.

Q. Why not cell phone numbers?

A I asked him that, and he said the reason

ig it is again back to a jail security risk, and those
numbers have the potential to be used in ways they
shoﬁldn't be used and so they still want those numbers
not blocked for jail security reasons.

Q. Were there also then on December 5th and
6th two phone numbers, specifically 763-421-1441 and
763-684-0627, that were blocked?

A, I don't remember the numbers
specifically, but I remember telling them that, to block
the office_numbers and to block the private investigator
number because I had been told that even though normally
the private investigator's.number is not subject to be
blocked, in this case the County Attorney had allowed
that to happen and so that private investigator's office
number and the two attorneys' firm numbers were put in

there as blocked.
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Q. Aand are those numbers still being
blocked?

A. Yes. To my knowledge they haven't been
changed.

MR. ZDRAZIL: I have no further
gquestions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Mr. Durkin.

BY MR. DURKIN : REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Q. Captain McArthur, does it say anywhere
in the jail handbook that you record some attorney calls
and not others?

A. Not to my knowledge, no. -

Q. Did you ever tell Kenneth Andersen
or --? Did you ever tell Kenneth Andersen you were
recording his attorney calls?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever tell us you were recording
our attorney calls?

A No.

Q. You ever call my office and tell us you
were recording our attorney calls?

A. No.

0. So you guys just made a random decision
to record my calls, my associate's calls, and my

partner's calls with Kenneth Andersen; correct?
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A, I made a decision based on policy of the
jail.

Q. Is that policy in the handbook?

A. No.

Q. In fact, it says all non-attorney/client

privileged calls will be recorded; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. That's all it says; right?

A, That's correct.

Q. So basically --. And if I can refer

Mr. Zdrazil and maybe Your Honor to No. 5 in my initial
Notice of Motion and motione, the big thick one we were
dealing with on the search warrant issue, page --

number --. The first item in that ‘is the actual motion
itself. The second item in that is Affidavit of William
K. Bulmer, Esquire. No. 5. And then I'll just speak to
you, if I may, Captain McArthur. So basically our
office called you guys up, basically gave you the
numbers, the cell phone numbers, correct, and the office
numbers; correct?

A. Yes. It was --. And I believe the
investigator's number was on that slip, too, I think.
Yes.

Q. Peffect. And we weré told that those

numbers were on the block list; right?
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A. I have no idea if you were told that.

Q. Okay. That's fine. But then you made
the decigion, without informing anybody involved, to
record the three numbers; correct? Put them on the no
record list?

A. That's not correct.

Q. You made the decision to put the three
attorney cell numbers on the no record list based on
policy; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. all right. So every single call that
Mr. Andersen has made in the past, I don't know, three
or four months, my math isn't that good, I am sorry, T
am not a mathematician, but for whatever those months
are, those phone calls have been recorded; correct?

A. If it was a cell phone, yes.

Q. My cell phone, every conversation,
whether we're talking about the rain, the weather, the
case or your testimony tomorrow or a trial, that's

recorded; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Same with William Bulmer's;
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. and the same with Mark Giancola;
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correct?

A. If that was his cell phone number, I am
not sure.

Q. Well, can I --7?

A. Those three numbers, yup.

Q. Perfect. And the same with --. Oh, and

it was your testimony that you decided that you would do
us a favor, or Kenneth Andersen a favor, for lack of a

better term, you put his investigator's number in the no

block -- or the block list; right?
A. No, that wasn't what I said.
0. Well, did you --? You blocked

Mr. Fladmark's,'the private investigator, you blocked
his number; correct?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. But you generally said -- as a general
matter, the Becker County jail doesn't do that because

they don't believe those communications are privileged;

correct?
A. Yes.
MR. DURKIN: No further questions.
THE COURT: Mr. Zdrazil?
BY MR. ZDRAZIL RECROSS-EXAMINATION

Q. Captain McArthur, and that's because you

were told by the prosecutors to block that number; is
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that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And just to clarify, Mr. Durkin asked
you if every call to a cell phone number of his attorney
has been recorded, and you said yes.

A, Yes.

Q. Has any call of Mr. Andersen to his
attorney's cell phone been listened to?

A. No.

MR. ZDRAZIL: No further guestions.

MR. DURKIN: Not right now, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. You can step
down, sir.

MR. DURKIN: Oh, may I have that copy of
the jail handbook or do you need it? Could we enter
that into evidence?

MR. ZDRAZIL: Your Honor, I have
actually never seen the jail handbook, so I have no
objection as long as after I have a chance to look it.

MR. DURKIN: Of course.

MR. ZDRAZIL: I can file an objection if
T think there is anything in there,

THE WITNESS: I made two of them.

PHE COURT: Let's mark one of them as

Exhibit 2, and we will receive that for purposes of this
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hearing.
Are we now done with this witness?

MR. ZDRAZIL: Yes.

(Exhibit No. 2 was marked for
identification.)

THE CLERK: Exhibit 2 marked.

THE COURT: Counsel, approach, please.

(Discussion held at the bench off the
record)

THE COURT: You are done with your
position on the phone calls.

Mr. Zdrazil.

MR. ZDRAZIL: Your Honor, I will call
Dan Baumann.

THE COURT: All right. Just have a

seat, sir. I just remind you that you are still under

oath.
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
BY MR. ZDRAZIL DIRECT EXAMINATION
Q. Hello again, Special Agent Baumann.
A. Hello.
Q. You --. 1Is it correct, Special Agent

Baumann, that you have been specifically listening to
phone calls, off and on, between you and Captain

McArthur have been listening to phone calls made by
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Kenneth Andersen from the jail here in Becker County and
prior to him being in Becker County in I believe 1t was
Mahnomen and one other county?

A. In Roseau County; correct.

Q. And to the extent that you have been
listening to those phone calls, have you occasionally
heard a call, or more than one call, have you heard
calls where it becomes apparent that the Defendant is
talking to one of his attorneys or the investigator
hired by his attorneys?

A, Yes.

Q. wWhat do you do when it becomes apparent
to you that he is talking to an attorney 6r the
investigator?

A. I immediately terminated listening to
those calls and then looked through the remainder of the
calls that I have on that CD. CDs are provided to me to
review and identify the other names that are the same
and delete those from the --. So I -- ordinarily I take
them from the CD, download them onto my computer and
then delete the calls that are consistent with attorney
calls.

Q. So the same number?

A. Same number.

Q. I am sorry?
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A. The same number.

Q. Okay. And has that been true ever since
you started listening to phone calls made by the
Defendant?

A, Yes.

Q. Have you ever in the process of
listening to a call before it became apparent to you
that this was a call to one of Mr. Andersen's attorneys
or to the investigator, have you ever heard any
discussions of any information concerning this case,
concerning witnesses, concerning trial strategy,
anything that would involve the facts or the procedure
in this case?

A. No, sir.

Q. Have you ever as a result of anything
you have heard in a call between the Defendant and one
of his attorneys or the iﬁ&estigator initiated an
investigation or asked somebody to look into something
or done any investigation on your own?

A. No, sir.

Q. Have you ever, as you have been looking
at this case, and perhaps let me clarify. Is it fair to
say that all reports generated either by you or other
people in this case at some point would be routed to you

so you would, in fact, not only read your own reports
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but read reports by other investigators in this case?
A, Yes.
Q. Have you ever in the process of reading
those reports ever suspected that a report or that a
witness was interviewed or that somebody took an
initiative because of something that was heard between

the Defendant and one of his attorneys or an

investigator?
A, No.
Q. On the other hand, have vou in listening

to phone calls between the Defendant and say his mother,
his sister, Mike Ladue, who is not an attorney, his
brother, have you heard things that have prompted you to
initiate investigations?

A, Yes.

Q. Have you occasionally heard the
Defendant say things along the line when he is talking
to, say, his mother, or his brother, my attorney is
going to do such and such or is going to talk to so and
s07?

A. Yes, they talk about the attorneys.

Q. Okay. And when he says that the
attorney is going to talk to so and so, do you then go
talk to so and so yourself?

A. Ordinarily, vyes.
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MR. ZDRAZIL: No further guestions,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Durkin.

BY MR. DURKIN CROSS~EXAMINATION
Q. Agent Sieling, {(sic) you indicated

that --. Do you have a laptop?
A, Yes.
Q. So you use a laptop for your work.. Or

at least a lot?

A, Yes.

Q. Because it's a laptop, in the field it
makes it super easy, I guess; right?

A. Yes.

Q. So you get a disk from the jail of phone
calls; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And then you load those calls like I
would when I get a disk from Mr. Zdrazil or Mr. Fritz, I

pop it into my laptop; right?

A. Correct.

Q. And then do you download it to your hard
drive?

A. I download it to, yeah, to a file.

Q. You actudlly download a disk that might

have, like for example, we have gotten, you know, a
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bunch of disks from vou guys and it will say Andersen
jail calls, November 14th through November 22nd. And
they will be, as I am sure you have listened, brutally

long, tedious hours of jail calls; fair enough?

A. Those are the same calls, yes.
Q. veah. And then you down --. SO you
don't -- you don't just listen to them on the disk, you

download that disk onto your hard drive and create a
file?

A. Yes.

Q. So you don't need the disk to access
those calls at some point; correct?

A. That's correct. And then I can delete
the calls that don't need to be on or reviewed.

Q. So basically then you take the disk, you
pop it into your laptop, create a file. ©So then
basically you are walking around with your laptop and
those attorney/client privileged calls until you listen
to that call and delete it; fair enough?

A. Yes.

Q. So those calls could be in your car when

your laptop is in your car; fair enough?

A. Yes.
Q. Could be down at the BCA; fair enough?
A. Yes.




Case 0.08IEs FABMMNRLE  Document 1-2  Filed 10/15/2008  Page 34 of 385

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q. Sheriff's office?
A. Sure.
Q. Heck, I mean it is theoretically

possible if you had your laptop here today, you could
have some of them here right now?

A, Yes.

Q. So basically you have those
attorney/client privileged calls sitting in your laptop,
right, until you have erased them?

A. Correct.

Q. Wherever those laptop is, those sacred
private calls are; right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, next guestion. What about
the disk? Do you destroy the entire disk?

A, Yes.

0. Well, now let me ask you this. How can
that possibly be true? If you have a disk jail call,
Kenneth Andersen, November 15th, November 22nd. Call
November 23rd at 8 o'clock at night is from Kenny
driving me crazy on a Friday night for two hours wanting
to talk about his case when I just want to do nothing
more than have Vodka Red Bull, now --

A, I -- T don't maintain those calls.

Q. Right. But they are on the disk; right?
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They are on a disk. That is how they get to your hard
drive.

A. On a disk that is provided to me by
Becker County.

Q. Right. So you listen to the one phone
call on your hard drive or you download it to your hard
drive. Where is the disk then? There is disk of two
weeks worth of calls; right?

A. Right.

Q. Some of those calls are attorney/client

privileged callsg; right?

A. Right.

0. - Some of those calls aren't; right?

A. Right.

Q. You can't download from -- or you can't
erase a disk -- you can't erase an item from a disk?

A, No.

0. What happens to the disk? Where are

those sacred private calls now then?

A. I break them.

Q. So you break the entire disk after you
download --? You telling me that you break the entire
disk? You download it into your computer and then you
break it?

A. Download it, make sure it is downloaded,
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and then once I have gone through the information, then-
that disk is no longer -- it is no longer important to

us, and I break that disk because 1t contains your

calls.
Q. Oh, because it contains my calls? Okay.
A. Well, it contains all the calls.
Q. And then what? Then how does

Mr. Zdrazil get that disk?
A. Mr. Zdrazil should get the disk that

contains the Kenneth Andersen calls.

Q. How is that disk made?
A. The edited calls.

Q. How does that get made?
A. I make it.

Q. You make it?

MR. DURKIN: Okay. I don't have any
further guestions.

THE COURT: Mr., Zdrazil,.

MR. ZDRAZIL: No questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. You can
step down.

MR. ZDRAZIL: The State has no further
witnesses, Your Honor.

MR. DURKIN: If I can just --. Just if

I can just briefly say something on that issue.
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They can't record my calls. They can't
record hig calls. He can't put on a defense knowing
that every single phone call made to his attorney is
being recorded. That's -- that is beyond outrageous,
beyond outrageous. And then they sit here and they tell
you, well, first they told us, well, we don't fail to
disclose information, and we don't lie to get a search
warrant. Now we don't listen to your phone calls. Come
on. They are recording every single phone call to
myself, my partner, and my associate. That is so
violative of statute, per se, hundred dollar -- under

the statute a hundred dollar violation per incident.

_That alone, this wviolation is egregious and so

fundamental that I don't even know what to say. I have
never heard of such a thing. I never have. I am
absolutely dumfounded that they have a policy, No. 1, of
recording all attorney calls that are on a cell phone
even though they know they are attorneys. It is not in
the handbook. And we are absolutely prejudiced by that
and we cannot —-- he cannot get a fair trial, and we
cannot defend this case and he cannot have a meaningful
relationship and meeting with his attorneys. He
simply --. And if I can have just half a second, Your
Honor. You know, we can't prepare for trial. We can't

plan our defense. We can't speak -- we can't speak to
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each other in private. Every time he calls me now I
say, Kenny, I can't talk to you right now. I am afraid,
because I know they are recording these calls. This is
not -- this is not a jaywalking case. This is a murder
case where the rest of his life is at stake, the rest of
hig life. &aAnd they are recording everything he says.
That is shameful and outrageous and violative of every
Sixth Amendment principle I can think of.

That's all.

THE COURT: Mr. Durkin, I can tell you
that no call will be recorded again on any of those cell
phone numbers or land lines to his attorneys, regardless
of what happens here. The jail will stop doing that
immediately. So whatever happens from now on, you can
feel very comfortable that those calls will not be
recorded.

Is that Clear, gentlemen?

MR. ZDRAZIL: It is, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any response you want to.
make, Mr. zdrazil?

MR. ZDRAZIL: Only, Your Honor, and I
assume you are going to want a brief on this.

THE COURT: I am.

MR. ZDRAZIL: I am not going to spend a

lot of time, but I think I have to say that Mr. Durkin
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didn't even feel this was important enough to ask that
the numbers be blocked until December, and it is
disingenuous to now be as self-righteous as he is.

MR. DURKIN: Because never in my
life --. Because we just assumed that attorney/client
calls weren't recorded because that's how it pretty much
goes in every county. And if they are subject to
recording, they will tell you that they are subject to
recording. They will let you know. Nobody ever told us
and we have been battling with Reliance. So it is a
little disingenuous toc sit here and say, oh, it means
nothing to me because I didn't ask for it. I asked for
it and went crazy as soonvas we found out. And then, as
the Affidavit in my motion indicates, we were told that
it was a done deal when we submitted those numbers.

And I respectfully request that his bail
be reduced to maybe 100 or $200,000 so we can prepare a
defense and so he can have a fair trial. For that
reason alone, coupled with everything else, I think that
everything is so cumulative at this point that there is
really no other alternative, and I know that we are
going to have to brief that issue, but I just want to
make that right now, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have one issue left?

MR. DURKIN: We do. It is the change of




